1: 03: 41 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
FOURTH SPECI AL SESSI ON
Novenber 7, 2017
1: 03 p. m

Seaton called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 1:03 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Pitney,
Ofice of

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Ki t o;

SUMVARY

Di r ect or,
t he

Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Paul Seaton, Co-Chair
Les Gara, Vice-Chair
Jason G enn

David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki

Dan Otiz

Lance Pruitt

St eve Thonpson

Cathy Tilton

Tamm e W1 son

Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,
Gover nor ; Representative Bryce Edgnon
Dave Talerico; Representative Dan Saddler;
Loui se Stutes; Representative Gary Knopp;
Jonat han Krei ss-Tonkins; Representative Sam

Representative Geran Tarr.

PRESENTATI ON:  FI SCAL OVERVI EW BUDCGET GAP ANALYSI S AND FUND
SOURCE BALANCES BY THE OFFI CE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

House Fi nance Committee 1

11/07/17 1:03 P.M



Co-Chair Seaton reviewed the agenda for the day. He
acknowl edged Representatives Bryce Edgnon, Dave Talerico,
and Dan Saddler in the audience.

APRESENTATI ON: FI SCAL OVERVI EW BUDGET GAP ANALYSI S AND FUND
SOURCE BALANCES BY THE OFFI CE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

1: 05: 20 PM

PAT PITNEY, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET,
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, introduced the  Power Poi nt
Presentation: "Fiscal Overview Budget Gap Analysis and Fund
Sour ce Bal ances” dated Novenber 7, 2017 (copy on file). She
rel ayed that she intended to denonstrate the current status
of known issues regardi ng the budget.

1: 06: 12 PM

Ms. Pitney began with slide 2: "Spending: State Budget
Overview." She reported the total state budget was $10.2
billion, half of which was nade up of UG- [unrestricted
general fund], and of that, education was the |[argest
expenditure, followed by PFD [Pernmanent Fund Dividend],
Medi caid, other health prograns, public safety and debt
servi ces.

e The total state budget is $10.2 billion, and
conpri ses:
o Federally funded prograns
0 Service generated revenue
o State funded prograns and service

e Only 50 percent of the budget inpacts the deficit, the
unrestricted general fund portion.

1: 06: 58 PM

Ms. Pitney noved to the pie chart on slide 3: "Spending:
State Budget Overview." The chart showed the breakdown of
the $5.1 billion in UG spending:

e Capital, $0.1

e Fish and Gane, Natural Resources, $0.1
e University, AVTEC, $0.3

e Education, $1.3

« Medicaid, $0.6

House Fi nance Committee 2 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



e PFD, $0.8

e Other Health Prograns, $0.5

e Public Safety and Justi ce[ori],
e Statewide Itens, $0.5

1: 07: 28 PM

Ms. Pitney detailed slide 4: "Spending: State Budget
Overvi ew':

More than 50 percent of the state-funded share of the
budget is sent as direct paynents to conmunities,
providers, oil conpanies, and individuals. Paynents are
for itenms such as:
e Medicaid paynents to providers (on behalf of
enr ol | ees)
* K-12 School s
* Retirenent paynents (on behalf of comunities and
school s)
 School debt reinbursenent
* Senior benefits
* Public assistance
» Foster care
Ol and gas tax credits
e Permanent fund divi dends

Less than 50 percent of state funded budget is spent on
government services |like troopers, road naintenance,
ferries, airports, prisons, the |legislature, Pioneer
Hones, the courts, the governor’s office, fish and gane,
etc.

1: 08: 49 PM

Ms. Pitney turned to slide 5: "Spending: State Budget
Overview. Unrestricted Ceneral Fund Spending Trend." She
indicated that the slide showed the total operating budget
had gone down by 23 percent and the total budget was down
28 percent. She highlighted that the University budget was
dowmn 8 percent. O her executive departnments were down 43
percent in UG-, The[ory debt service budget was down 52
percent .

1:10: 40 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Representative WIlson asked about federal funds and know ng
whet her they had decreased.

Ms. Pitney responded that although the federal nunbers were
not on the slide, the information was avail able, specifying
that federal funds had increased over the sane peri od.

Representative WIlson reported that there mght be other
things that were included in the calculations that she was
not aware of. There was a difference in nunbers for
education of about $100 mllion. She asked for nore
details.

Ms. Pitney stated the information could be passed on.

Co-Chair Seaton indicated that those nunbers could be
provided via the co-chairs’ offices. Co-Chair Seaton
acknow edged that the neeting had been joined by
Representatives Louise Stutes and Gary Knopp.

Ms. Pitney reviewed slide 7: "Budget Gap: State Budget
Overview Known Increases FY 2018 to FY 2018." She pointed
to Medicaid at the top of the Ilist and suggested an
increase of $75 million. She detailed that the Legislative
Finance Division (LFD) had originally proposed a figure of
$32 million, but the adm nistration had determ ned the need
was closer to $75 million for FY 18.

1:13: 30 PM

Ms. Pitney continued to the Al aska Marine H ghway System
(AVHS) funding. The Legislative Finance Division had
conmmunicated a $40 mllion (a supplenental put into the
AVHS Fund from prior year funds and a larger draw of the
AVHS funds). There was also an additional $4 nmillion draw
for a total of $44 nmillion for a status quo service |evel

She addressed the fire suppression increnent of $15

mllion, whi ch had not been i ncl uded in t he
adm ni stration's budget forecast. She estimated the figure
woul d be closer to $7.5 mllion, given a balance from the

| ast year. She did not believe salary and benefits would be
the full $15 mllion listed on the slide, but they did not
yet have exact figures. She did not anticipate an increase
for the enployer contribution for Al askaCare; there were a
couple of union contracts that would require an increase to
enpl oyer health benefits, but it would be rmuch |ower than

House Fi nance Committee 4 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



$15 mllion. She estimated the figure would be closer to $5
mllion.

Co-Chair Seaton asked if Ms. Pitney was not anticipating a
heal thcare cost increase to Al askaCare in the com ng year

MVs. Pitney responded that OB expected the current
Al askaCare enployer contribution of $1,555 to extend
through FY 19. There would be increases in the enployee
contribution to the premium She continued that there was
i nproved performance of steerage. She detailed there were
several initiatives to help reduce enployee healthcare
costs, which were starting to bend the curve in the desired
way. She noted there would be an increase in enployee
contri butions.

Co-Chair Seaton expressed a desire to have M. Pitney
return when the commttee heard npbre about the issue in
days to cone.

1:16: 56 PM

Ms. Pitney replied that the cost changes were short-term
only. She agreed with Mark Foster's [financial analyst]
assessnment of 7 percent enployee healthcare increases over
the last ten years. She believed the Mdicaid increase was
slightly under 5 percent for the sane period. She clarified
she was speaking about state funding; including both
brought the figure up to 7 percent.

Vice-Chair Gara referenced salary and benefits and noted
that when the state started running out of noney there had
been negotiations wth enployee wunions; the wunions had

agreed to two years wthout cost of Iliving increases. He
asked if there would be no cost of living increases in FY
18.

Ms. Pitney replied that it depended on the contract. She
expl ai ned that several of the contracts would see no cost
of living increase, while the PSEA [Public Safety
Enpl oyee's Association] had just been finalized and did
include an increase. The Alaska Correctional Oficers
Associ ation (ACOA) had received an increase in the current
fiscal year.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Vice-Chair Gara asked about other unions. M. Pitney
answered that nobst union contracts did not include cost of
living increases. She would follow up with a list.

Vice-Chair Gara asked for verification that FY 18 was the
| ast year wthout a cost of living increase. M. Pitney
answered in the affirmati ve.

Vi ce-Chair Gara thought that sonmeone would have to take the
| ead on healthcare costs. The commttee had seen studies by
Mar k Foster regarding conbining healthcare plans and ot her.
He wondered if OVB was going to take the |lead on heal thcare
cost reduction.

Ms. Pitney replied that OMB was neeting w th Departnent of
Heal t h and Soci al Servi ces (DHSS) , Depar t ment of
Adm ni stration (DOA) and Departnment of Commerce, Community
and Econom c Developnment (DCCED) internally. Al three
departnments were working in separate areas, while OVB was
taking an unbrella view as to how to nove together to
address healthcare costs as a unit. She reported about $1.2
billion state fundi ng went to Medi cai d, enpl oyee
heal thcare, and retiree on-behalf paynents, as well as
retirement contributions. She factored in healthcare for
corrections, juvenile justice, and associated with a recent

federal waiver in the private insurance nmarket. She
el aborated that if the figure continued to grow at 5
percent versus an inflation-only forecast, it would be a
$200 mllion difference in the budget in several years. The

nunbers represented initial overview cost pieces.

1: 21: 41 PM

Vice-Chair Gara asked if the admnistration would be
introducing an initiative about healthcare cost containnment
in January [2018].

Ms. Pitney indicated that the admnistration would be
continuing to focus on initiatives to reduce cost. She was
not prepared to say a nmjor proposal would be introduced

She stated it was a big enough issue that there would be
numerous ideas. Healthcare costs were the biggest cost
driver in the budget, but the solutions were not sinple,
and any solution would affect everyone. The adm nistration
woul d continue to focus on healthcare costs and what could
be done.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Co- Chai r Seat on recogni zed Represent ati ves Johnat han
Krei ss-Tonki ns and Sam Kito in the audi ence.

1:23: 31 PM

Representative Otiz pointed to the $44 mllion for AMHS on
slide 7. He asked for verification the anmount represented
the total draw down fromthe AVHS operating fund.

Ms. Pitney replied that it was from the AMHS Fund
(generated by fare revenue).

Representative Otiz asked how nmuch was in the fund after
the $44 mllion draw down.

Ms. Pitney responded that the operating budget conprom se
the past session, a deposit had intended to be $30 nmillion
in the FY 17 budget. However, due to the Constitutional
Budget Reserve (CBR) cap and higher than expected
suppl emental itenms, the figure had only been $23 mllion.
She explained that the governor intended to replace the
funds; however, if the $23 million was not replaced via a
suppl emrental, the fund would be exhausted in as early as
April [2018].

Representative Otiz asked Ms. Pitney how the funds had
been used by AMHS. He wondered if it had operated as a
buf fer fund.

Ms. Pitney answered that the fund had been wused for
operations, but it only funded partial service. She
specified that roughly 35 percent to 40 percent of noney
for AVHS was generated through fares; the remaining portion
was funded with general funds. Both fund sources were used
to operate AMHS. Funds from the fares had provided cash
flow certainty and a buffer. She elaborated that the
| egi slature could choose to appropriate additional noney
when necessary. Under the proposed scenario, "there's not
the cash that exists."

1: 26: 51 PM

Representative Otiz referred to slide 6. He wondered how
much the Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities
(DOT) budget had been reduced from 2015 to 2018 and what
portion of the reduction inpacted AVHS.

House Fi nance Committee 7 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Ms. Pitney answered that DOT had significant reductions.
She did not have the detail on hand.

Representative Ortiz asked if had also had AVHS significant
reducti ons.

MVs. Pitney confirnmed that both [DOT and AWHS] had
experienced significant reductions.

Ms. Pitney reported that as part of the Mdicaid reform
effort, there had been an expectation of Ilower iinmte
heal t hcare costs. Medicaid had picked up a significant part
of inmate healthcare costs, but the reduction had not been
as significant as expected due to increases in healthcare
costs. She detailed there had been a supplenental request
for $10 mllion the preceding year. An additional $10
mllion would be needed for FY 18 to cover healthcare costs
(it had not been a part of the FY 18 base).

1: 28: 51 PM

Representative WIson believed a few inmates had gone to
the Lower 48 because of nore affordable health costs. She
detailed that there had been up to $500,000 in savings for
one person. She wondered why the Departnent of Corrections
(DOC) was not wusing things such as electronic nonitoring
and hal fway houses to reduce the costs. She understood that
Medi cai d expansi on would pick up the healthcare costs, but
not while a person was in a [correctional] institution.

Ms. Pitney replied there was a case-by-case review of every
option that considered public safety and cost.

1: 29: 43 PM

Representative WIlson recalled the legislature had received
i nformation about what the illnesses were. Remarked on the
idea of turning a halfway house into nedical facility in
order to utilize Medicaid expansion and private insurance.
She asked if the option had ever been consi dered.

Ms. Pitney was unsure about whether the adm nistration had
| ooked at an inmate healthcare facility separate from a
prison.

Co- Chair Seaton thought it would be appropriate to ask DOC

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Representative WIson stated the conmittee had received
information on Medicaid expansion pertaining to halfway
houses and electronic nonitoring. She hoped the idea could
be added to the conversation. She hoped it could be added
and remarked that the decision pertaining to Medicaid
expansi on had only been in place for a year. She specul ated
that a person being treated with dialysis would not run
off. She reasoned that it was the tinme to rewite contracts
pertaining to nental health issues and other nedical
i ssues. She believed it was better than sending patients
out of state. She wondered if there was another avenue to
t ake, whil e nmintaining savings.

Co-Chair Seaton relayed that the commttee would be talking
about healthcare later in the week.

1: 31: 44 PM

Ms. Pitney continued to address slide 7 titled "Budget Gap:
State Budget Overview." She detailed that M. Edgecunbe
facility funding had been changed to the Public School
Trust Fund. She detailed that LFD showed it as an increase
in UG, the fund source was al so available in future years.
The administration anticipated debt service would be
reduced by $4 nmillion. At the end of the last session $8
mllion had been appropriated as a one-tine increnent to
the Community Assistance Program on top of funding fromthe
Communi ty Assi stance Fund.

Ms. Pitney explained that due to a change in the oil price
and production forecast, the oil and gas tax credits were
expected to increase by $118 nmillion over the prior year.
The Public Education Fund had been used for a one-tine
reappropriation from the [indecipherable] road district;
the $17 million would nost likely need to be replaced with
ongoi ng revenue. She highlighted the actuarial increase of
$107 mllion in state assistance to retirenent. The tota
operating increase anticipated by OV was $360 nillion
conpared to the LFD estimate of $347 mllion.

Ms. Pitney addressed the capital budget line on slide 7 and
relayed that $93 nillion represented reappropriations nmade
in the capital budget the |ast year. She elaborated that
reappropriations were the prior year's dollars and did not
add to the bottom line total. If the state had the sane
capi tal budget as the prior year, it would be necessary to
add $93 mllion. Fiscal notes, program sunsets, and other

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



one-tine items had a relief of $65 mllion - sonme would
mat eri alize, and sone would not. She added that sone of the
itens pertained to justice reform In order to fund
services at the sane level of the prior year the total
i ncrease was $388 million.

1: 34: 48 PM

Vice-Chair Gara understood there was an austerity capita
budget of $93 million. He believed the average prior to the
state's fiscal crisis was around $500 million to $600
mllion per year. He was concerned that a capital budget of
$93 mllion would perpetuate deferred naintenance and the
slide in construction jobs. He wondered if the governor
woul d consi der proposing the capital budget that woul d neet
the needs with the understanding he would need to veto it
if the legislature failed to devise a fiscal plan.

Ms. Pitney would not presune what the governor woul d choose
to do on the capital budget, which would be released in
Decenber. She explained that the $93 million had been added
to t he $132 mllion capi tal budget t hr ough
reappropriations. She noted it did not count the Juneau
Access Road reappropriation. The total capital budget had
been $225 nmillion.

Co-Chair Seaton surmsed that the nunber was indicating
one-tinme funding of $93 million. He surmsed that the $93
mllion would have to cone from another funding source in
t he future.

1: 37: 22 PM

Ms. Pitney noved to slide 8. The budget change of $388
mllion on slide 7 was added to the FY 18 budget of $4.3
billion, which resulted in $4.7 billion FY 19 base budget
wi thout the Pernmanent Fund Dividend. The new revenue
forecast projected slightly over $2 billion, which left a
deficit of $2.7 billion. She pointed to the Senate's
Per manent Fund plan with a 75 percent governnent/25 percent
dividend split, which would result in a gap of $638
mllion. Wereas, the House Permanent Fund plan with a 67
percent governnent/33 percent dividend split would result
in a gap of $863 million. The slide included projections
for FY 19, FY 20, and FY 21; the differences on spending
were due to known increases for retirenent and debt,
credits, and inflation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Representative Kawasaki pointed to an LFD (20-year
| ookback) agency summary capital budget handout he had
distributed (copy on file). He asked if mamintaining flat
service levels included the general funds going towards the
capi tal budget.

Ms. Pitney believed it reflected a $225 nmillion capital
budget with inflation.

Representative Kawasaki asked if it was $225 nillion going
forward to an unknown tinme. Ms. Pitney agreed.

1: 40: 05 PM
AT EASE

1: 40: 41 PM
RECONVENED

Represent ati ve Kawasaki asked for verification that the UGF
and designated general funds (DGF) for the capital budget
woul d be $225 [million] going forward.

Ms. Pitney responded in the affirmative.

Representati ve Kawasaki observed that the nunbers [in the
LFD capital budget | ookback] showed that the capital budget
was smaller than it had ever been in twenty years. He
stated his concern that the $2.7 billion budget gap was
under st at ed. He remarked that the Associated Cenera
Contractors were neeting the followng day to discuss the
capital budget. He asked about wunanticipated costs that
would be reflected in future budgets if the state had an
austere $225 mllion [capital] budget going forward.

Ms. Pitney asked Representative Kawasaki to elaborate on
hi s questi on.

Representative Kawasaki remarked on the $1 billion in
deferred nmintenance for the University of Alaska's
statewi de system Additionally, there was another $1
billion in state infrastructure deferred nmintenance. He
added the figures did not include local comunities wth
their own schools and boroughs. He asked about the risk of
havi ng a capital budget fixed at $225 million for 10 years.

House Fi nance Committee 11 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Ms. Pitney responded that capital budget [of $225 mllion]
woul d cover federal match and m ni num deferred maintenance;
it would not cover any new facilities. The forecast on
slide 8 was a representation of the FY 18 service |evel
The slide did not represent the governor's intention or a
pl an goi ng forward.

Representative Kawasaki asked for verification that the
figure did not include any deferred maintenance and only
i ncl uded capturing what the federal match nmay be.

Ms. Pitney clarified it was federal nmatch and m ninum
deferred maintenance. She detailed that federal match was
just over $120 mllion. Additionally, there were other
capital progranms traditionally funded through the capital
budget . It left a very small amount for deferred
mai nt enance overall .

1:44: 02 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki believed the state's budget deficit
was larger than $2.7 billion. He observed that capital
budgets in the past 20 years had been substantially |arger.
He elaborated that there was $2 billion in deferred

mai nt enance at present, neaning the state had not kept up
with its deferred nmintenance needs for several years. He
believed it was an understated scenario when | ooking at the
current deficit and what the future deficit would | ook
like. He hoped the administration and |Ilegislators
recogni zed the issue.

Representative WIson asked if House and Senate Permanent
Fund plans anticipated at 6.5 percent annual return (as
shown i n anot her handout received by the commttee).

Ms. Pitney answered that the base scenario shown on slide 8
was built on a 6.95 percent return. She expounded that the
6.5 percent return was information received shortly after
the presentation had been conpiled. The 6.5 percent return
neant a revenue shortfall in both plans of about $100
mllion four to five years out. She explained that the
change in return did not make a substantial difference in
the FY 19 to FY 21 tineframe due to the lagging five-year
aver age.

Representative WIson wondered about avai l able data
lowering the rate from6.95 to 6.5 percent annual return.

House Fi nance Committee 12 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Ms. Pitney answered that the scenario spreadsheets she
planned to address l|later on used the 6.5 percent annual
return.

1: 46: 26 PM

Representative WIson wondered why the return had been 6.95
percent. She assuned data had projected the return and she
was trying to determ ne what changed. She asked why the
annual return had been changed to 6.5 percent.

Ms. Pitney responded that the Al aska Permanent Fund
Corporation's (APFC) advisor Callan Associates had reduced
its ten-year outlook from 6.95 percent to 6.5 percent. She
added the advice had recently been given at an APFC board
meet i ng.

1:47: 20 PM

Representative WIson requested a copy of the back-up
showi ng the reason Callan had recommended changi ng the 6.95
percent to 6.5 percent. She considered that 6.5 percent was
also too high. She did not want to nmke m stakes when
| ooking at possibly utilizing any of the noney to fund
gover nnent .

Co- Chair Seaton added that the director of APFC would be
neeting with the comrttee soon and could share the
information from Callan Associates. He did not believe the
data fell under OWB s purview.

Representative WIlson was fine with APFC providing the
information. She would appreciate the information prior to
the meeting so she could review the naterial and be
prepared with questions.

Co-Chair Seaton would look into what information APFC was
able to share. He thought there may be sone confidentiality
pertaining to the work product provided by Callan to APFC

Representative WIlson requested a higher view of the
factors that went into Callan's recommendati on.

Co- Chair Seaton replied that he would submt the request.

1:49: 44 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Vice-Chair Gara spoke to the difference in the House
Permanent Fund plan and the Senate's plan. He noted that
the Senate's plan included dividends of approxinmtely
$1,000 and the House's plan included dividends of
approximately $1,250. He stated that the $250 difference
had al ways appeared as $170 mllion to $180 mllion. He
observed that the presentation showed a difference of $230
mllion. He asked for detail.

Ms. Pitney replied that as the Permanent Fund value
increased, the anmount from the 5 percent or 5.25 percent
| agging interest increased. As that took place, the spread
between a 25 percent dividend and a 33 percent dividend
wi dened.

Vice-Chair Gara stated that the Permanent Fund Earnings
Reserve Account (ERA) contained nuch nore than it had the
preceding year. He surmsed that under those formulas it
would lead to a larger dividend and a | arger difference.

Ms. Pitney responded in the negative. She explained that
the dividend was based on the draw of 5.25 percent over a

prior five-year average. Over tinme the actual net
difference in cost of the dividend would grow from $150
mllion to $225 million to $250 million because of the 25

percent versus 33 percent calculation. The percentage drawn
woul d be the sane.

1: 51: 50 PM

Representative Quttenberg spoke to the "no federal cost
shifts" bullet point on slide 8 He wondered if OVB had
determned that the state had done all it could do make
additional shifts. He wondered if there were any areas or
scenarios that were shifting that would allow for
addi tional shifts.

Ms. Pitney replied that slide 8 represented nore negative
consequences. She explained that i f oi | price and
production forecasts were not net, the revenue figure would
drop and the budget gap would increase. She el aborated that
if agency costs could not be kept at inflation or below,
the budget gap would grow. She explained that the bullet
point "no federal cost shifts" applied if the federal
government did not shift costs back to the state. She
expl ained that wth healthcare uncertainty, it could be a

House Fi nance Committee 14 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



significant nove back. There were other federal prograns
that the legislature would have to contenplate whether it
wanted to fund or not. The slide assunmed the state would
only get nore costs shifted from the federal governnent to
the state. She addressed K-12 school increases that grew
close to 5 percent for many years. The base scenario on
slide 8 included a 2.25 percent increase with no student
growmh built in. Al four itens would increase the budget
and did not take into account Representative Kawasaki's
concern that there was not enough built in for the capita

budget .

1: 54: 26 PM

Ms. Pitney turned to slide 9, which she had covered in
response to Representative CQuttenberg's question. She
addressed healthcare cost containnment efforts and expl ai ned
the forecast had been built in at inflation only of 2.25
percent. She detailed that if costs could be maintai ned at
5 percent instead of the quoted 7 percent, it would be a
difference of approximately $100 nillion. Keeping the
increase at 3.5 percent instead of slightly over 5 percent
woul d nmean another $100 mllion. A cost increase of 2.25
percent neant another $100 nillion. She highlighted
crimnal justice initiatives that could increase costs. She
spoke to nmarket correction that could inpact Permanent Fund
earnings. She detailed that 6.95 percent and 6.5 percent
i ncreases had been built in. She spoke about the period
between 2007 and 2015 and explained it would be a
di fference of alnobst $500 million at an average 6.5 percent
dr aw.

Ms. Pitney elucidated that the House and Senate plans had
very structured draws on the Permanent Fund: 5.25 percent
on a lagging five-year average, which would drop to 5
percent over tinme. She detailed the structure had been
decided on based on what was sustainable for the fund to
grow or nmaintain its value in real terms. She explained
that if the legislature took $500 million nore out of the
fund for a period of five years, the draw would produce

$150 million less annually in perpetuity. She furthered
that taking $500 mllion nore per year for ten years would
nmean $400 mllion less per year in perpetuity. She

expl ai ned that an overdraw would take for today what shoul d
be available for generations in the future. She stressed it
was a substantial anmount of noney. She noted that instead
of doing $500 nillion in new revenue for five years, it

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



woul d nmean putting a $650 mllion new revenue to stay even
because what the state would get from the Pernmanent Fund
would be $150 million less. Overdrawing the ERA in the
near-termcreated a larger gap in the long-term

1:58:17 PM

Co-Chair Seaton asked if the Healthcare cost containnment
efforts | ooked at agencies or included the state's unfunded
liability to Public Enployees' Retirenent System (PERS) and
Teachers' Retirenment System (TRS)

Ms. Pitney answered that the cost containnment efforts
| ooked at all healthcare cost issues including Medicaid,
juvenile justice, corrections, and enployee healthcare
costs. The cost included everything that passed through the
state budget and retirenment. The state paid 22 percent on
every enployee in PERS and 12.5 percent for TRS, which was
part of the healthcare cost. The total healthcare cost was
$1.2 billion

Co-Chair Seaton asked if a 1.5 percent change [in the
percentage rate] was the equivalent of $100 mllion. He
asked for clarification.

Ms. Pitney replied that the difference was 1.25 percent
She detailed that an increase from 2.25 percent to 3.5
percent was $100 million four years out.

Representative QGuttenberg shared that he always advised a
new governor or mayor that they did not want to be the
person who got caught short on disaster planning. He was
sure disaster planning and preparedness was a departnental
effort. He wondered if there was sufficient noney avail abl e
to take care of a disaster without calling the legislature
in [to a special session].

Ms. Pitney responded that if a prudent balance of $2
billion was left in the CBR (the bal ance was getting | ow at
present), it would be sufficient to address npbst natural
di sasters in a stable fiscal environnent.

2:01:12 PM

Ms. Pitney highlighted slide 10: "Budget Gap: State Budget
Overvi ew. Budget Gap Under Various Assunptions.” She
referenced the budget gap of $638 mllion factoring the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Senate's Permanent Fund plan and the $863 mnillion gap
factoring in the House's Permanent Fund plan (slide 8). She
returned to slide 10 and highlighted the $618 nillion gap
under the Senate plan conpared to the $836 mllion gap
under the House plan. The gap would be sonewhere in the
mddle if the legislature had a conprom se dividend plan.
She elaborated that if oil prices increased to $65 per
barrel, the gap would be $370 million, while a decrease in
the price of oil to $50 per barrel would nean a $910
mllion gap. She noted that any of the circunstances shown
on the slide was as valid as the next.

Ms. Pitney continued to a bar chart on slide 11 that showed
the various scenarios over tinme. The slide also included
the budget gap scenario if a market crash occurred. She
explained that if the experience from 2007 to 2015 repeated
itself, a market crash would result in a budget gap between
$700 mllion and $900 mllion. Wth a conpronm se dividend
and oil prices at $50 per barrel, the gap woul d worsen over
time (to over $1 billion in 2025). Under a scenario with a
conprom se dividend and revenue, the gap would decrease
over time fromFY 19 to FY 25.

Representati ve Kawasaki thought the explanation on a prior
slide regarding the budget wth flat service did not
i nclude the dividend. He spoke about taking the nunber and
putting it on page 10 with baseline revenues and Permanent
Fund earnings. He noted that the dividend was larger in the
House bill than it had been in the Senate bill.

Ms. Pitney explained that the gap in the Senate plan was
$600 mllion and the gap in the House plan was $800
mllion. The gap was larger in the House plan due to the
di vidend di fference.

Representati ve Kawasaki |ooked at the first colum titled
"Senate SB26" on slide 10 and observed that the 2019
basel i ne revenue plus the Permanent Fund earnings mnus the
budget resulted in a gap of $618 mllion. He referenced the
second columm titled "House SB26," which had a higher
di vi dend.

2:04:34 PM

Ms. Pitney clarified it reflected the Permanent Fund
earnings draw that would cover government. The renainder
would go to the dividend. The slide excluded the dividend,

House Fi nance Committee 17 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



but because the dividend was higher in the House plan the
gap was hi gher.

Ms. Pitney continued to speak to slide 10. She pointed to
the second bullet point and explained that with revenue and
the CBR the legislature could avoid overdrawing the
Per manent Fund. The Permanent Fund needed to be viewed as
the state's primary revenue stream She specified $600
mllion was a prudent target for revenue; currently the
state was |looking at $320 mllion plus proposed taxes (HB
4001, notor fuel tax, and other small fee increases).

Ms. Pitney reviewed the graph on slide 12: "Savings: State
Budget Overview FY 2010-2018 State Revenue and Expenditure
(Wthout Dividend)." She noted that fortunately between
2010 to 2012 the state had been building its reserves. She
hi ghlighted the deficit area between revenue and expense in
the past several years; the state had consunmed the $14

billion even with a 44 percent decrease in state UG- since
Fy 13. Unfortunately, revenues had decreased nore
dramatically. The state had spent $14 billion from its

savings over that time period. She added that the state's
constitution required repaynment of the CBR back to its peak
in FY 13. The spending of the CBR and the decision to not
sweep the funds required a three-quarter vote [by the
| egi slature]. She continued that the CBR would be part of
the budget discussions going forward. She surm sed that
even under the best circunstances the $14 billion was
unlikely to be repaid in full.

Ms. Pitney continued to slides 13 and 14. She stated that
the state had been fortunate to have the CBR to draw the
gap. The admnistration believed $2 billion should be
mai ntained in the CBR to help address volatility facing the
state. She stressed that even if the Permanent Fund plan
and a broad-based revenue were enacted Al aska would stil
be nore volatile than any other state in the nation.
Currently Alaska was three tinmes nore volatile than the
next nost volatile state, which was either Womng or North
Dakota. She advised that mintaining the existing CBR
bal ance (or very near the existing balance) was prudent.
The state currently used about $1 billion per year fromthe
CBR for cash flow |f anything unexpected arose, having the
CBR to use (rather than having to go ad hoc to the ERA) was
a much better plan because overdrawi ng the ERA woul d cost a
significant annual revenue streamin the future.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



2:09:25 PM

Ms. Pitney highlighted other fund bal ances on slide 15. The
Power Cost Equalization (PCE) Fund had a balance of just
over $1 billion. She detailed the account was responsible
for funding PCE paynents of about $40 million. There were
also provisions allowng the account to fund comunity
assi stance and renewabl e energy. The Hi gher Education Fund
had a bal ance of $339 mllion (the asterisk next to PCE and
the Hi gher Education Fund indicated they were quasi-
endowrents established by the |legislature). The Hi gher
Educati on Fund provided for schol arships, but over the past
three years it had also funded several prograns including
t he Washi ngton, Wom ng, Al aska, Montana, and |daho (WM\M )
program the Online Wth Libraries program a teacher
mentor program and other. The prograns used the annual
earnings from the quasi-endowent. The Al aska Housing
Capital Corporation Account had a balance of $22 nmillion
derived fromthe Anerada Hess settl enent.

Ms. Pitney continued to address slide 15. She nentioned the
Capital Income Fund. The Comunity Assistance Fund had a
bal ance of $60 mllion; wthout additional deposits it
would be a $20 mllion payout in FY 19. The Vessel
Repl acenent Fund had paid for the recent Tustunena [ferry]
repl acenent and had a renmi ni ng bal ance of $22 mllion. She
nmentioned a line related to various snaller funds. The
Public School Trust Fund had a bal ance of $623 million. She
detailed it had an old endownent structure for the payout -
it paid out only earnings from the prior year versus a
percent of market val ue (POW) payout. She noted | egislation
had been introduced to change the fund to a nore nodern POW
payout, which would return nore on an annual basis and woul d
decrease volatility.

2:11:53 PM

Representative WIson asked why the accounts Ilisted on
slide 15 were DG and the Permanent Fund was UGF. She
reasoned the dividend had been made for a specific purpose,
but it would be UG, while the other accounts were DG-.

Ms. Pitney answered that the UGF designation was under the
assunption that the ERA was used by the legislature for
sonething other than the PFD only. She explained that one
could argue that it was not reclassified vyet. The
adm nistration asserted that with the SB 26 franmework on

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



both the House and Senate side, it was a UG- funding
sour ce.

Representative WIlson did not understand the reasoning. She
expl ained that the funds listed on slide 15 could be used
for whatever the legislature wanted although it chose not
to. For exanple, the legislature could elect to take the $1
billion from the PCE Fund and put it in the General Fund
She noted they could do the sane wth Permanent Fund
ear ni ngs. She wondered why there was a designation
difference. She added that fuel tax had also Dbeen
deternmned to be DG. She thought there had to be sone type
of checklist determ ning which category a fund fell under.
She pointed out that the dividend had not been classified
as UGF until recently.

Ms. Pitney replied that the LFD Swiss Arny Knife Handbook
included rules for designation. She explained that if
statute designated the funding to a particular purpose it
was considered designated. She agreed with Representative
Wl son that any of the funds could be used for any purpose
or reverted into the General Fund. She elaborated it was a
choice to have the designation. She saw two distinctly
different pieces of DG. One that was earned (like ferry
revenues) for a particular direct service. For exanple, the
purchase of a fishing license, paying for a class at Al aska
Vocational Technical Center (AVIEC) or the University, or
buying a ferry ticket. She explained the itens were truly
DG and would not be earned unless the service was
provided. The second type of DG included things Ilike
al cohol tax, marijuana tax, the recidivism fund, and other
funds from particular tax revenues that were set aside. How
the itenms should be classified was a policy discussion. She
added that OVB cal cul ated a net zero shift of approxi mtely
$600 nmillion would go into UG if the passthrough dollars
were classified as UGF instead of DG

2:15:32 PM

Representative WIlson stated there was statute for Higher
Educati on Fund and nost of the other funds on slide 15. She
stated Permanent Fund Dividend was designated in statute.
She remarked that so many of the spreadsheets in the past
did not include the Permanent Fund, but the ones before the
coommittee did (although no earnings had been used). She
believed it mde it harder for the public to do
conparisons. She thought that nost would assune the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Per manent Fund woul d be considered DG until at sone point
the ERA was utilized. She thought it was a policy call and
surmsed that they nmay not need all of the funds. She
believed the funds nmde things nore confusing because
borrowing from DG nmade it appear UG- went down, but in
reality they were still spending the sanme anount of noney
if not nore.

Co-Chair Seaton explained that the last year all the
reports had been in UG and all G- for the purposes of
conparison. He asked for verification that if the PCE Fund
generated over a certain anount it would flow over into the
Community Assistance Fund. He asked if noney had been
transferred into the Community Assistance Fund.

Ms. Pitney responded that there was a provision that if
there were sufficient earnings an appropriation could be
made to the Comrunity Assistance Fund from PCE as well as
for energy assistance. In FY 17 there were sufficient
ear ni ngs, which would require that the legislature
appropriate the funds going forward. She noted as witten
it would be expected to be an FY 19 deposit.

Co- Chair Seaton asked about the nmechanism was part of the
governor's budget. He asked what the nechanism for the
det erm nati on was.

Ms. Pitney answered that the admnistration had not
i ncluded community assistance from UG when it put forward
its FY 18 Dbudget. She specified it had been the
admnistration's intent to include the funding as a
supplenmental item if a fiscal plan had been adopted. In a
structured way the PCE deposit would be in FY 19.

Co-Chair Seaton asked if the item showed wup in the
governor's budget as an appropriation if there were
sufficient earnings in PCE Al ternatively, he wondered if
the legislature had to do it separately.

Ms. Pitney replied that the appropriation could show up in
t he governor's budget, but decisions on the upcom ng FY 19
budget had not yet been nade.

Co-Chair Seaton was trying to determne where the PCE
mechani sm woul d cone forward, so everyone woul d be aware of
its location. He thought the topic would be discussedors
further.

House Fi nance Committee 21 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



2:20: 01 PM

Representative CGuttenberg remarked that slide 15 indicated
that PCE and the Al aska Hi gher Education Fund were set up
as quasi -endownents. He asked if the earnings of PCE rolled
back into the PCE Fund at the end of the year. He wondered
if there was a separation between the endownent fund and
t he earni ngs.

Ms. Pitney answered there was no distinction other than the
calculation of the balance at the beginning of FY 17 and
the balance at the end of FY 17. She stated it was nerely
the earnings, which all remained in the fund unti
appropri at ed.

Representative QGuttenberg pointed to the asterisk next to
the Al aska Hi gher Education Fund [indicating the fund was a
guasi - endowrent] and assunmed the fund worked the sane way.
He wondered if the other funds worked in a simlar fashion
where there was no difference between the earnings and the
fund cor pus.

Ms. Pitney relayed that the remaining funds on the slide
were not quasi-endowrents; an appropriation was nade from
those funds. She noted the Capital Incone Fund was funded
with earnings from the Anerada Hess settlenment. She
explained the fund was the "parking lot" where old
reappropriations went and sat. She noted she had m xed the
funds up earlier when she described them The Conmunity
Assi stance Fund is one-third of the bal ance. She expl ai ned
that the day before the end of the fiscal year one-third of
t he bal ance was available for deposit on the fiscal year.
Wthout additional appropriations it would nmean $20
mllion; if there was another appropriation it would be
hi gher.

2:22:26 PM

Vice-Chair Gara addressed the history of revenue sharing.
He believed it had been $100 nmillion three years back, $60
mllion, $50 mllion, and $38 mllion the past year. He
stated the anmount was supposed to be $30 mllion in the
current fiscal year; the legislature had added $8 nillion
in the capital budget, bringing the anpbunt back up to $38
mllion. He asked for verification that the fund bal ance

House Fi nance Committee 22 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



woul d be $20 mllion for FY 19 if nothing nore was added by
the | egislature.

Ms. Pitney responded affirnatively.

Ms. Pitney spoke to the line graph on slide 16: "Revenue:
State Budget Overview Al aska Permanent Fund Earnings."
Per manent Fund earnings was the state's |argest source of
annual revenue. She pointed to the red line which reflected
traditional GF revenues. The blue line indicated Permanent
Fund earnings over the past several years. Assumng the
val ue of the Permanent Fund was protected into the future,
it would probably be the state's nobst robust annual revenue
source goi ng forward.

Co-Chair Seaton asked if the revenue on slide 16 excluded
oil tax credits owed.

Ms. Pitney responded that the revenue |ine subtracted
revenue reduction credits, but not the cashable credits
that were $600 million FY 15 and sonewhat nore in other
years.

Co-Chair Seaton surmsed that any per barrel credit and
expenditure like the cash credit witten against taxes owed
was already incorporated. M. Pitney responded that those
itens were factored into the red Iine [GF revenue].

2:25:09 PM

Ms. Pitney explained the bar chart on slide 17: "Revenue:
State Budget Overview Permanent Fund Earnings Over Draw
| npact."” Maintaining the CBR balance at a $2 billion
m ni mum was prudent for revenue volatility and to address
any issues outside the norm which was what it had been
designed for (nostly for any type of disaster). The $2
billion level was sensible given the state's size and the
way the fund was used for early cash draws at the begi nning
of the year. She explained the scenario represented what
would occur if the state began using the ERA after it
depleted the CBR in FY 20. She elaborated that an
additional $500 mllion annually taken from the ERA above
the structured draw woul d reduce the Permanent Fund bal ance

by $5 billion over the course of ten years conpared to a
structured draw wth additional revenues. She explained
that the scenario would produce $250 million |ess annually.

The chart showed how the scenario would erode the val ue of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



t he Permanent Fund and how | ess revenue woul d be generat ed,
increasing the need for other revenue sources in the
future.

Vice-Chair Gara nentioned that there had been debate over a
revenue cap feature of the House and Senate Permanent Fund
bill. He stated that the cap resulted in relatively smal
failure rates. He addressed whether there would still be
sufficient funds in the ERA depending on stock market
volatility. He stated that the chart did not |ook so awful,
but if an additional $500 million was w thdrawmm from the
ERA annual ly, the chance the ERA would fail was
substantially higher due to stock nmarket fluctuations.

Ms. Pitney responded in the affirmative. The chart assuned
the 6.5 or 6.95 percent increases annually; it did not
factor in any market volatility. She would address
volatility shortly [on the next slide].

2:28: 04 PM

Ms. Pitney turned to the next bar chart on slide 18:
"Revenue: State Budget Overview WMarket Correction |npact."”
She reported that the slide showed the revenue stream using
the 6.95 percent assunption. She noted the difference
between the 6.95 and 6.5 percent assunptions would only be
marginally different in tw to three years. The base
scenario showed $2.7 billion in revenue by FY 27. Whereas,
the "2007 to 2015 experience" used actual returns from FY
07 to FY 15 and showed the FY 27 draw woul d decline nearly
$600 mllion (split between governnment and the dividend).
She stated that the scenario was wunlikely, but it had
occurred in 2007 to 2015. The scenario would nean being
tight on the ERA;, if the state overdrew, it would |ikely
run into trouble with the ERA

Co- Chair Seaton recogni zed Representative Geran Tarr in the
audi ence.

2:30:15 PM

Ms. Pitney turned to slide 19: "Revenue: State Budget
Overview. Market Correction Inpact: Ten Year Forecasts:

Average Return and Market Correction.” She addressed
scenarios in a separate handout titled "Ofice of
Managenment and Budget Attachnent A Scenarios" dated

Novenber 6, 2017 (copy on file). She highlighted a scenario

House Fi nance Committee 24 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



with a 6.5 percent annual return and the 5.5 percent
dropping to 5 percent |agging average. There would be an
end balance of $76 billion in the Permanent Fund. The
pl anned draw amount went from $2.7 billion to $3.4 billion
under the House's version of SB 26. The fourth row on page
1 of the handout showed Ceneral Fund revenue w thout the
di vidend. Row 5 showed declining deficits ($800 mllion in
the near-term dropping to $311 million in FY 27). The
i nformati on was based on the FY 18 service |level forecast.

Ms. Pitney el aborated that with the notor fuels tax and the
SB 26 additional royalty the deficit dropped to $265
mllion in FY 27. She reported that funding the renaining
deficit with the ERA would nean a 5.6 percent draw in FY 19
instead of a 4.3 percent draw. The 4.3 percent was the
effective draw - it was 5.25 percent of the first five of
the lagging six-year average. She explained it would nean
taking 5.25 percent of a smaller base, neaning the
effective draw on the value would be 4.3 percent. She
continued that if the difference was nade up with ERA
funds, it would nean a 5.6 percent draw, which was not
sust ai nable. She added HB 4001 [the governor's proposed
wage tax legislation] to the scenario [revenue was
projected at $160 mllion in FY 19 and $320 million
annually going forward] and using the ERA to cover the
difference. The scenario would result in a 5.3 percent
draw, which was not sustainable. She explained that under

the various draws, instead of having [a Permanent Fund
value] a balance of $76 billion at the ten-year tinefrane,
with no new revenue the balance would be $69 billion, and

with no use of the CBR the anpunt would be $72 billion. The
ERA balance would remain strong and the second to the
bottom row showed the dividend cal cul ati on over tine.

2:34:21 PM

Representati ve Thonpson asked if any of the OVB projections
assunmed any budget reductions.

Ms. Pitney responded that the scenario used the steady
state FY 18 and known increases for retirenent, tax
credits, and 2.5 percent inflation. She noted that it only
had 2.25 percent, so if healthcare costs were not brought
dowmn there would be no way to neet the 2.5 percent
projection - and if anything was done with schools. The
nunbers did not include additional reductions on top of the
44 percent that had been nmade to date.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Representative Thonpson surmsed that if there were
addi tional reductions in the future it would have an i npact
on the figures in the scenario.

Ms. Pitney agreed.

Co-Chair Seaton asked if inflation proofing for the
Per manent Fund was included in the data. He noted that the
House pl an had included 0.25 percent inflation proofing.

Ms. Pitney believed the 0.25 percent inflation proofing
woul d add to the ERA balance in the handout scenarios. The
Permanent Fund values were correct, but the ERA bal ance
woul d be hi gh.

Co-Chair Seaton asked Ms. Pitney to check on the issue and
foll ow up. Ms. Pitney agreed.

2:36: 34 PM

Ms. Pitney noved to Scenario 2 on page 2 of Attachnent A
The scenario used a 29 percent dividend (a split between
the House and Senate plans). The difference between
Scenarios 1 and 2 was the conprom se dividend. The scenario
resulted in a lower deficit going forward and a higher
Permanent Fund value. She noted that the conprom se
dividend was |lower at $1,400 conpared to the $1,600
di vidend in Scenario 1

Representative WIson asked why the ERA bal ance dropped so
significantly between 2018 and 2019 and renmained fairly
stabl e goi ng forward.

Ms. Pitney responded that the conprom se version assuned
the "4 tinmes draw limt." She expounded that if the ERA
exceeded 4 times the draw limt at the end of the year, the
remai nder was deposited into the Permanent Fund corpus.
Under the scenario the draw was $2.7 billion. The
i npl enentation of the 4 times draw was the reason for the
drop in the ERA balance from $15 billion to $10 billion
bet ween FY 18 and FY 19.

Representative W/Ison asked if the provision would reduce
the noney available for dividends and draw. She reasoned
that the funds were protected once deposited into the
[ Per manent Fund] cor pus.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Ms. Pitney replied that if the ERA was spent as a savings
account versus using a structured draw of 5.5 percent, it
would Iimt funds available to spend in an ad hoc way. She
el aborated it protected the Permanent Fund and preserved
anyt hing over a necessary buffer of four years of draw, the
funds went back into the corpus.

2:40: 03 PM

Co-Chair Seaton surmsed the reason for the zero percent
draw in FY 18 was because a structured draw not been taken
from the Permanent Fund. The legislature had used the CBR
to fund the FY 18 budget. He noted that the draw went from
zero to 5.4 percent.

Ms. Pitney agreed. She added that OVB could include the
percent used for the dividend, which would be nore. She
reported $760 million had cone out.

2:40: 53 PM

Representative Otiz asked if the 29 percent dividend in
Scenario 2 was based on the Senate's pl an.

Ms. Pitney reported that it was a conpronise between the
House and Senate nunbers of 33 percent and 25 percent
respectively.

Ms. Pitney advanced to Scenario 3 on page 3 of Attachnent
A. The scenario used the Senate's 25 percent dividend. She
highlighted two different provisions in SB 26. The first
provision in the Senate's plan was an offset dollar-for-
dollar what was drawn from the ERA at $1.2 billion in
petrol eum revenue. Whereas, the House plan included $1.4
billion increasing with inflation. She pointed to the
ending deficit of $523 [mllion] with nmotor fuels as the
only revenue source. She noved back to Scenario 2 and
expl ai ned the sanme issue occurred because the dividend was
hi gher; the ending deficit in FY 27 was $682 [mIlion]. She
turned to Scenario 1 on page 1 and pointed to a |esser
deficit under the House plan with a higher dividend because
of the $1.4 billion offset versus the $1.2 billion offset.
She believed the $1.2 billion provision versus the $1.4
billion would be an inportant piece of the conprom se.

House Fi nance Committee 27 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Ms. Pitney turned to Scenario 4 on page 4 of Attachnment A,

which illustrated what would happen in the event of a
mar ket crash (nodeled after FY 07 to FY 15 actual returns).
The remaining deficit would be $1 billion wthout any

additional revenue and $700 million with revenue. She noted
there were two years of no ERA available [FY 21 and FY 22].
She added that under the scenario having the CBR in place
and avail abl e was necessary.

2:44:15 PM

Co-Chair Seaton asked about the ERA and the structured
dr aw.

Ms. Pitney replied there was some amount of structured
draw, it assuned dividends were paid first. There were sone
funds avail abl e annually due to earnings, but not enough to
cover bot h.

Co- Chair Seaton [indeci pherabl e audi o] .

Representative WIson |ooked at Scenario 4 on page 4 and
observed that FY 23 and FY 24 followed two years of an ERA
bal ance of zero. She noted that the increase in the fund
bal ance was substantial. She surmsed that perhaps it
indicated that government and residents would not be
getting anything. She asked for clarity.

Ms. Pitney responded that the earnings canme off of the
Per manent Fund value. The Permanent Fund value dropped
substantially, and the earnings were not sufficient to
cover both pieces. She explained that the ERA was used
entirely. Market gains neant the Permanent Fund val ue woul d
i ncrease. She explained the scenario was based on the FY 07
to FY 15 actual returns experience. She clarified it was
t he experience using the funds going forward.

Co-Chair Seaton rephrased that in sonme years there were
fairly large losses and in other years there were fairly
| ar ge gains.

Ms. Pitney agreed the swi ngs were offset.
Co-Chair Seaton surm sed that Scenario 4 did not result in
a picture where everything was beautiful and 6.5 percent

was the actual inconme annually. He wanted to ensure people
understood the other scenarios were based on the level 6.5

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



percent investnent earnings annually, whereas Scenario 4
was based on the actual returns for the last ten years
appl i ed agai nst the future years.

Ms. Pitney pointed out that in mddle years the [SB 26]
draw was $2.1 nillion [Scenario 4], whereas the draw in
m ddl e years [Scenario 3] went from $2.1 billion to $2.3
billion, and $2.1 billion growing to $2.2 billion [Scenario
2]. She clarified that |ess was drawn because the val ue was
| ess.

2:47:31 PM

Representative Pruitt remarked that the diversification of
the Permanent Fund was different than it had been in the
past. He wondered if there was a nechanism to understand
when using historical data how to adjust for how the fund
had been invested differently during times of substantial
loss. He asked if it was possible to go back and estimte
what the difference in |loss would have been the fund had
been invested nore like it was at present.

Ms. Pitney replied that the question should go to APFC

Representative Pruitt wunderstood the concept of using
historical Permanent Fund data. He wondered if it nmeant
they should also look at the historical averages or costs
of oil during the tineframe. He reasoned that they were
| ooking at an estinmate provided by DOR for one portion and
hi storical data for the Permanent Fund. He reasoned if they
used historical data for both the ERA would | ook terrible,
but there would be other areas that may |ook different as
well, including the remaining deficit.

Ms. Pitney responded that it was difficult to nmake many
changes in scenarios, but she believed Representative
Pruitt was saying if oil prices had been $140 per barrel
t he ERA woul d not have been needed because other provisions
woul d protect it. She agreed and explained it was a stress
test. She furthered that even with a $320 mllion nobdest
broad-based tax wunder a worst-case nmarket condition,
al though unlikely, there was risk. The state was not
rai sing so nuch revenue that it was elimnating all market
risks. She reiterated that the Ilikelihood of the worst-case
scenari o was not high

2:50: 54 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



Representative Pruitt recognized it was not possible to
ever get enough exanples in a stress test. He used Scenario
4 as the worst-case scenario. He wondered if it would be
prudent to have a discussion that if additional revenue was
generated by HB 4001, they were still far fromfilling the
deficit if a worst-case scenario occurred. He wondered if
cuts or other work related to the size of governnent should
be done during that tinefranme to give a viewpoint on what
to expect if the worst-case scenario cane to fruition. He
surm sed that the 2 percent growth shown in the scenario
woul d probably not be sustai nabl e.

Ms. Pitney replied that when OVB had given a simlar
presentation to the Senate, they had asked to include a
$200 nmillion reduction in as a scenario. She would provide
the data to the commttee.

Co-Chair Seaton clarified that the stress test did not
necessarily produce failure if the system was robust
enough.

2:53:10 PM

Ms. Pitney returned to the PowerPoint presentation. She
reviewed the information on slide 20: "Revenue: State
Budget Overview Tax Proposal."” The proposed tax [in HB

4001] was a 1.5 percent tax on wages. The tax would be
capped at $2,200 or twice the PFD, whichever was greater;
the cap began at inconme of $147,000/year. There was no net
tax burden wuntil a person reached $75,000 per year in
wages. The maxi num tax burden after counting the PFD was
$1, 100.

Ms. Pitney provided information regarding the bar chart on
slide 21: "Revenue: State Budget Overview Tax Proposal:
Per-Capita Broad-Based State Tax Revenues, By State, 2016."
The tax would |eave the state at the |owest per capita
br oad- based tax burden. The "ones below here" are l|argely
al cohol and tobacco.

Co-Chair Seaton referred to the bullet point on page 20
indicating that out-of-state residents would pay the
hi ghest rate because they did not receive PFDs. He asked
for verification that the individuals would not pay the
hi ghest rate because it was a flat rate, they would nerely
not receive conpensation fromthe state in a PFD. He wanted

House Fi nance Conmmittee 30 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



to make sure people understood there would not be a
separate higher rate for nonresidents. He hoped in future
presentati ons OVB woul d change the wording of the statenent
to avoi d confusion.

Ms. Pitney agreed.

Representative Guttenberg referred to slide 21. He asked if
a $1,000 PFD was included it would offset taxes paid. He
observed taxes paid in Al aska appeared to be about $1, 000.
Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative.

Representative Quttenberg surm sed that Wi t hout t he
proposed tax, residents were in the positive [due to the

PFD] .

2:56:13 PM

Representative WIlson referenced OVB Attachnent B titled
"Unrestricted General Fund Budget FY2013 to FY2018" dated
Novenber 1, 2017 (copy on file). She wondered why the
spreadsheet used the nanagenent plan versus actuals. She
reasoned that a budget reflected the nbst that could be
spent, not the |east. She wondered why actuals would not be
i ncluded as nuch as possible to understand what was being
spent .

Ms. Pitney answered that OVB could provide the information.
The data in Attachnent B followed a traditional view She
detailed they could provide the data through FY 16 and OVB
was in the process of finalizing FY 17 nunbers.

Representative WIson wondered if OB added supplenentals
to the year the funds had been spent. She cited a $10
mllion supplenental increment for DOC. She explained the
funds had actually been spent the previous year. She
wondered if OVB went back and added the supplenental
increnents to the year they had been spent.

MVs. Pitney addressed the DOC exanple provided by
Representative WIlson. She specified that the $10 mllion
[ suppl enental increment] had been a DG source and would
shown in the DOC budget in FY 17 [the year it was spent].

Representative WIson asked how often OVB |ooked at
[ departnment] vacancy rates and updated PCNs that were no

House Fi nance Conmmittee 31 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



| onger filled. She remarked that unfunded positions were a
big issue for the public. She believed the past year the
governor had asked departnents to delete positions that had
been vacant for six nonths.

Ms. Pitney responded that the information was updated in
t he budget process at managenent plan and at the governor's
budget request. Both happened in the fall tinmefrane. The
managenent plan represented the FY 18 currently underway
and the governor's addressed plan changes for FY 19.

Representative WIson asked if the governor intended to do
a six nonth sweep of any PCNs. She thought there had been a
caveat for positions that were necessary and had
specialized criteria.

Ms. Pitney answered that the adm nistration was |ooking at
the issue all of the tine. She detailed that 2.5 to 3 years
back the admnistration had done the review annually.
Reviews had been increased to every six nonths and at
present they occurred every three nonths. She noted at
t hree nmont hs there were many nor e factors. The
adm nistration was actively addressing vacancies that
lingered. The scope of the remaining positions had been
nar r oned.

3:01: 01 PM

Representative WIson noted that the governor had included
provi sions focused on travel and how many positions should
be filled when vacated due to attrition. She noted there
had been a hiring freeze for a while and travel had been
| ooked at very carefully. She wondered if any of the things
were still in effect.

Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative; they were restricted
at the conmi ssioner level. She clarified that it was not at
an office or division |evel.

Representative WIson requested a list of itens asked of
departnments to keep costs down. Ms. Pitney agreed.

3:02: 15 PM

Representative Otiz relayed that Departnment of Revenue,
Tax Division Director Ken Al per had testified a couple of
weeks back that there were 2,500 fewer people working for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 32 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



the state than there had been a few years earlier. He
clarified he was not speaking about positions, but about
peopl e who were no longer working for the state. He asked
if Ms. Pitney was confortable with the figure.

Ms. Pitney replied that the figure was very close. She
bel i eved the nunber was about 2,600, but she had not | ooked
at an updated figure for the current nonth.

3:03:18 PM

Vi ce-Chair Gara understood the governor was trying to build
a conprom se that he believed everyone would agree with. He
spoke to an issue that he found concerning. He asked if at
an incone level of $150,000 a person paid no tax on
addi tional incone of any anount.

Ms. Pitney replied the inconme |evel was $147, 000.

Vice-Chair Gara reviewed that the tax would be 1.5 percent
up to $147,000 of income and zero tax on earnings above
that amount. He recalled that M. Al per had testified
soneone earning $1 mllion per year would pay one-sixth the
total tax rate paid by a low to mddle-incone person. He
asked if Ms. Pitney had different nunbers.

Ms. Pitney replied that she did not have different nunbers.

Vice-Chair Gara renmarked that it would not be easy to sel
him on a tax rate that was lower for wealthy people than
for mddle and | owincone earners. He believed it was also
problematic that the tax would not apply to investnent
income. He asked for verification that nobney earned on
stock market dividends and capital gains was exenpt from
t he tax.

Ms. Pitney responded in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Seaton relayed that the commttee would have a
heari ng on HB 4001 the foll ow ng day.

Vice-Chair Gara recalled a slide presented to the conmttee
in the past specifying that the state needed to raise about
$600 mllion if it wanted to substantially address the
budget gap. He noted that the proposed tax would raise
about $325 million. He did not know how he could tell his
constituents that their taxes nmay be raised again in the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 33 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



future. He asked what the adm nistration neant when it told
the commttee $600 mllion shoul d be raised.

Ms. Pitney responded that if the legislature wanted to
cover the gap with revenue, $600 million was the prudent
target. Alternatively, if it was the legislature's desire
to stress the budget to find additional savings, sonething
| ess than $600 million would be required. The anmount would
also provide the ability to maintain the CBR and likely
begin returning funds back to the CBR in six to eight
years; it was an insurance policy against overdrawi ng the
ERA. Sone people may not want to use the $600 mllion
revenue target, but to reduce spending. The $320 mllion
was sonething in the mddle. The adm nistration was | ooking
at a way to provide fiscal certainty and connect the
econony to the state services received. The question of
reduced spending or increased revenue would perpetuate
goi ng forward.

Vice-Chair Gara referred to page 21 of the presentation. He
asked if a scenario where the $600 mllion in revenue was
raised would mean Alaska would have the second | owest
overal |l tax burden.

Ms. Pitney confirned that Alaska's tax burden would be the
second | owest [out of all 50 states].

Co- Chair Seaton thanked Ms. Pitney for her presentation and
reviewed the agenda for the follow ng day.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

3:09: 39 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:09 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 34 11/07/17 1:03 P. M



